
KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
148 N. Binkley Street
Soldotna, AK  99669

            
REGULAR SCHOOL BOARD MEETING: June 3, 2002 - 7:30 p.m. at the Borough  
 Administration Building, Soldotna, AK.  
   
SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS: Dr. Nels Anderson, President  
 Ms. Deborah Germano, Vice President  
 Mrs. Sammy Crawford, Clerk  
 Mr. Joe Arness, Treasurer  
 Mrs. Debra Mullins, Member  
 Mr. Al Poindexter, Member  
 Mrs. Margaret Gilman, Member  
 Miss Katie Lockwood, Student Representative  
   
 Worksessions  
 2:00 p.m. Year in Review  
 2:30 p.m. Superintendent Evaluation  
 3:30 p.m. School Board Self-Evaluation  
A-G-E-N-D-A 4:30 p.m. Seward Middle/High School Code Review  
 5:30 p.m. GASB 34/Fixed Assets  

1.    Opening Activities
a.     Call to Order
b.     Pledge of Allegiance/National Anthem/Alaska Flag Song
c.     Roll Call
d.     Approval of Agenda
e.     Approval of Minutes/April 24, 2002 (Special Meeting)

May 6, 2002
 

 

2.    School Reports
 

 

3.    Public Presentations (Items not on agenda, 3 minutes per speaker, 
30 minutes aggregate)

 
 

4.     Hearing of Delegations
 

 

5.    Communications and Petitions
 

 

6.    Advisory Committee, Site Councils and/or P.T.A., K.P.A.A., K.P.E.A., K.P.E.S.A.
 

 

7.     Awards and Presentations
a.     Gayle Buben, British Petroleum Teacher of Excellence
b.     Terri Carter, British Petroleum Teacher of Excellence
c.     Elizabeth Kirby, British Petroleum Teacher of Excellence
d.     Joe Rizzo, British Petroleum Teacher of Excellence
e.     Vernel Schneider, British Petroleum Teacher of Excellence
f.      Mary Kennedy, Nikiski Middle/High Parent Volunteer
g.     Soldotna High School PTSA Executive Board

 

 

8.     Superintendent's Report
 

 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Agenda060302.htm (1 of 2)10/20/2006 3:20:44 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

9.    Reports
a.     Financial Report
b.     Board Reports

 

 

10.  Action Items
a.                                                                    Consent Agenda 

(1)  Approval of Budget Transfer Number 621
(2)  Approval of New Teacher Assignments
(3)  Approval of Tentative Nontenure Teacher Assignments
(4)  Approval of Long-Term Substitute Teacher Contracts
(5)  Approval of Resignations
(6)  Approval of Leave of Absence Requests - Certified
(7)  Approval of Leave of Absence Requests –Support
(8)  Approval of Nontenure teachers for Tenure
(9)  Approval of Budget Transfer

(10)  Approval of Seldovia Boys and Girls Club Building Study
 

Finance
b.        Approval of FY03 Budget Revision

 
Superintendent

c.        Approval of Administrator Appointment
 

11.    First Reading of Policy Revisions
a.        BP 3440, Inventories
b.        BP 6146.1, High School Graduation Requirements

 

 

12.  Public Presentations/Comments (Individuals are limited to three minutes each on the topic(s) listed 
below or on any topic.)
 

 

13.  Board Comments
 

 

14.  Executive Session
 

 

15.  Adjourn  
* * * * * * * 

 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Agenda060302.htm (2 of 2)10/20/2006 3:20:44 PM

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/April%20Financial.txt


On 5/15/02, the leadership team (directors, senior management) reviewed the Board Self-Assessment document

 

Memorandum

DATE:      May 20, 2002

TO:          Members, Board of Education

FROM:     Donna Peterson, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools

RE:          Board Self-Assessment

On May 15, the leadership team (directors, senior management) reviewed the Board 
Self-Assessment document.  All concurred that the District is fortunate to have a 
school board dedicated to the best interests of children.  Any of the suggestions noted 
below should be kept in perspective and viewed as notes for continual improvement 
rather than criticism. 
 
Vision

+ Able to articulate concern for ALL student needs (districtwide), especially in 
Juneau.
 
– Perhaps a thorough review of policies, beginning with Bylaws of the Board and 
community relations might be a good task for the Board during the coming year.

 
Structure

+ We are free to do the work of the District and do not feel like we are second 
guessed by the Board.
 
– Perhaps work on facilitation of the Board itself...... although consensus is best 
model, worksessions could result in position development.  Then at the meeting 
the position could be stated and the vote taken.

 
Accountability

+ The Board doesn't just have their evaluation in policy, they actually do it.
 

– A more conscious revisiting/recapturing of what occurred in the worksession 
might be helpful to the public.

 
 
Advocacy

+ This is an area where the Board excels - the Golden Apple, the school reports, 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/BdSelfAssmt.htm (1 of 2)10/20/2006 3:20:49 PM



On 5/15/02, the leadership team (directors, senior management) reviewed the Board Self-Assessment document

the positive comments - all are great.
 
– Concentrating on visibility in the schools (without an invitation) would be a 
worthy goal.  A courtesy call to the principal the day before would be 
appreciated.  A proactive, ambitious schedule of visits would do a great deal for 
all schools.  Everyone wants to tell their story.

 
Conduct and Ethics

+ This Board understands and respects the diverse opinions of others.  You really 
all do seem to get along very well.
 
- As meetings are often teachable moments for the students in the audience, the 
recognition of being a formal body with a strict protocol is important.
 

 
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/BdSelfAssmt.htm (2 of 2)10/20/2006 3:20:49 PM



Situation:

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 28, 2002
 
TO:                  Board of Education
 
FROM:            Melody Douglas

Chief Financial Officer              
 
SUBJECT:            Required New Financial Reporting Model – Effective FY02
 
There will be a work-session on the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncement #34 that mandates a new financial reporting model.  This requirement will 
change some of the statements and schedules in the annual financial report with the addition of 
some new statements.  The goal of this change in financial reporting format is to make 
governmental financial statements more understandable to a lay-person.
 
This work-session will provide a brief overview of this change.  A copy of the Government 
Finance Officers Association publication ‘An Elected Official’s Guide to the New Governmental 
Financial Reporting Model’ is enclosed for your review.
 
A more extensive explanation of this change will be provided when the FY02 annual financial 
report is presented to the Board this fall.  These changes will be easier to discuss if one is able to 
see the new format with our data.
 
 
 
             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/GASB_FixedAssets.HTM (1 of 2)10/20/2006 3:20:49 PM



Situation:

 
             
                         
 
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/GASB_FixedAssets.HTM (2 of 2)10/20/2006 3:20:49 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING 
148 N. Binkley Street
Soldotna, AK 99669

 
April 24, 2002

 
SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS: Dr. Nels Anderson, President

Ms. Deborah Germano, Vice President
Mrs. Sammy Crawford, Clerk 
Mr. Joe Arness, Treasurer 
Mrs. Debra Mullins, Member
Mrs. Margaret Gilman, Member
Mr. Al Poindexter, Member
Miss Katie Lockwood, Student Representative
 

STAFF PRESENT: Dr. Donna Peterson, Superintendent of Schools
Mrs. Melody Douglas, Chief Financial Officer
Dr. Gary Whiteley, Assistant Superintendent, Instruction
Mr. Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services
 

OTHERS PRESENT: There were no members of the public present.
 

CALL TO ORDER: Dr. Anderson called the meeting to order at 8:30 p.m.
 

ROLL CALL: Dr. Nels Anderson
Ms. Deborah Germano
Mrs. Sammy Crawford 
Mr. Joe Arness 
Mrs. Debra Mullins
Mrs. Margaret Gilman
Mr. Al Poindexter
Miss Katie Lockwood
 

Present
Present
Absent/Excused
Present
Absent/Excused
Present
Absent/Excused
Absent/Excused 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: At 8:31 p.m., Mr. Arness moved the Board go into executive session to discuss 
matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the Borough.  Specifically, the executive session was to discuss 
negotiations.  Mrs. Gilman seconded.
 

 Motion carried unanimously.
 

ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION: At 10:17 p.m., Mrs. Gilman moved the executive session be adjourned.  Mr. Arness 
seconded.
 

 Motion carried unanimously.
 

RECESS: At 10:18 p.m., Dr. Anderson called a recess.
 

RECONVENE AFTER RECESS: At 2:54 p.m. on Monday, May 6, 2002, at Seward High School, Seward, Alaska, the 
Board reconvened in regular session.
 

 
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes042402Special.htm (1 of 2)10/20/2006 3:20:49 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

ADJOURN: At 2:55 p.m., Mr. Poindexter moved the School Board Meeting be adjourned.  Mrs. 
Gilman seconded.
 
Motion carried unanimously.
 

                                                                                          Respectfully submitted,

 
 
                                                                                                                 _________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                 Dr. Nels Anderson, President

 
                                                                                                                 _________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                 Mrs. Sammy Crawford, Clerk

The Minutes of April 24, 2002, 
have not been approved as of 
May 6, 2002.

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes042402Special.htm (2 of 2)10/20/2006 3:20:49 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Seward High School
Seward, AK 99603

 
May 6, 2002

 
SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS: Dr. Nels Anderson, President

Ms. Deborah Germano, Vice President
Mrs. Sammy Crawford, Clerk 
Mr. Joe Arness, Treasurer 
Mrs. Debra Mullins, Member
Mrs. Margaret Gilman, Member
Mr. Al Poindexter, Member
Miss Katie Lockwood, Student Representative
 

STAFF PRESENT: Dr. Donna Peterson, Superintendent of Schools
Mrs. Melody Douglas, Chief Financial Officer
Dr. Gary Whiteley, Assistant Superintendent, Instruction
Mr. Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services
 

OTHERS PRESENT: Mr. Erling Hofseth
Mr. Bill Rolph
Mr. John Cote'
Dr. Shannon Atkinson
Mrs. Patty Linville
Ms. Theresa Butts
Mr. Marc Swanson
Ms. Sharon Ganser
Ms. Melissa Olver
Mr. Dave Diekgraeff
Ms. Sandra Wassilie
 

Mr. Jim White
Mr. Rick Matiya
Mr. David Kingsland
Dr. Roy Anderson
Mr. Jerry Dixon
Mrs. Kim Reierson
Ms. Carol Griswold
Mr. Jerry Olive
Ms. Cindy Ecklund
Ms. Marianna Keil

 Others present not identified.

CALL TO ORDER: Dr. Anderson called the meeting to order at 5:05 p.m.  A quorum of School Board 
members, Dr. Anderson, Mr. Arness, Mrs. Mullins, Mrs. Gilman, Mr. Poindexter, Mrs. 
Crawford and Ms. Germano were in attendance. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: At 5:06 p.m., Mrs. Mullins moved the Board go into executive session to discuss 
matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon 
the finances of the Borough.  Specifically, the executive session was to discuss budget 
and negotiations.  Mrs. Crawford seconded.
 

 Motion carried unanimously.
 

ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION: At 6:03 p.m., Mr. Poindexter moved the executive session be adjourned.  Mrs. Crawford 
seconded.
 

 Motion carried unanimously.
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Dr. Anderson invited those present to participate in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

ROLL CALL: Dr. Nels Anderson
Ms. Deborah Germano

Present
Present

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (1 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Mrs. Sammy Crawford 
Mr. Joe Arness 
Mrs. Debra Mullins
Mrs. Margaret Gilman
Mr. Al Poindexter
Miss Katie Lockwood

Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Absent/Excused

 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: The agenda was approved as written.

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: The School Board Minutes of April 15, 2002 were approved as printed.
 

SCHOOL REPORTS: Mr. David Kingsland, Seward Elementary principal, introduced six student 
performers wearing traditional Native dress who danced and sang several Alutiiq 
songs. Mr. Crangle and two students presented a PowerPoint presentation 
highlighting the year’s activities at the school which included classroom activities, 
field trips, parent volunteers, classroom speakers, art specialists, the local rally for 
education, cocurricular events, Native Youth Olympics, student accomplishments, 
science fair, bingo for books parent-student night, preschool swimming, sixth grade 
wax museum, and technology training.
 

 Mr. Erling Hofseth, Hope Elementary/High principal, and Mr. Bill Rolph presented a 
PowerPoint presentation which included photos of the school, certified, and support 
staff, and a virtual tour of the school given by a senior high student.  Mr. Hofseth 
reported that the school has 16 full time students and two part time students.  He 
stated that writing is a school goal.  He reported that the school is unique because 
students are involved in many coeducational activities, participate in swimming 
lessons in Girdwood, are involved in critical incident planning, participate in the 
Jason Project at the Seward Sea Life Center, and are involved in many other 
activities.
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS: Ms. Marianna Keil, Seward Softball Association representative, expressed her 
appreciation for the Seward High administration.  She stated that Mr. Pautz, 
Mr. Cote' and Mr. Houghton listened to the parents and students, and supported the 
Softball Association.  She announced that the Association has a donation of coaches, 
uniforms, umpires, and reported that the team has won three games and two 
scrimmages.   She stated that she was impressed by the teachers, students and 
concerned citizens at the local rally for education.  She stated that it should not be a 
crime to fund education.  She suggested that the District be funded for everything 
possible outside the cap.
 

 Dr. Shannon Atkinson, stated she was speaking on behalf of Seward PTSA president-
elect, Dr. Marlin Atkinson.  She stated that the PTSA is concerned that the school 
faculty is becoming demoralized and that the lack of adequate funding may lead to 
problems attracting new employees.  She expressed concern that the District will not 
be offering adequate salaries and asked the Board to help the PTSA promote the 
Seward schools.  She stated that she is a professor of marine science at the University 
of Alaska and serves as the science director at the Alaska Sea Life Center.  She stated 
that the Center is trying to create a world-class facility that will bring new 
opportunities to the community and Alaska.  She noted that a weakened school 
system is a detriment and that schools should be more than adequate to encourage 
people to relocate in Seward.  She asked the Board for ways that PTSA can help lift 
the standards at the school, improve the morale at the school and support the 
teachers, administration and the students.  She stated that she has two children 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (2 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

attending school in Seward and was initially pleased.  She stated that she is not 
impressed with the block system because it limits the students.  She stated that class 
sizes are too large and the workload too much for the teachers. She stated that having 
30 to 35 students in a classroom is not acceptable because students do not get as 
much interaction as they need.  She stated that some of the attributes of the Hope 
School are attractive, especially the pupil-teacher ratio.  She stated that it is appalling 
that her daughter can only have science for one semester in seventh grade.  

 
 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS (continued): Ms. Patty Linville, Site Based Council member and Seward City librarian, stated that 

she has listened to the rhetoric for the last three years, such as declining enrollment, 
less funding, and fewer teachers.  She requested that the school administration, 
teachers, School Board, and representatives of each of the Kenai Peninsula Borough 
sites be mandated to develop a long range solution to address some of the problems 
that are continually haunting the education of Alaskan students and to consider the 
sliding scale state income tax proposal.  She stated that she would also like to see the 
group consider the problem of delivering a wide variety of classes to a small amount 
of students.  She stated that she would like to see funding for schools for a five- or 
ten-year period.  She stated that she would like to see more active lobbying for the 
interest of young couples with infants because the decisions made now will have an 
effect on them.  She stated that if an interest committee is formed, she would like to 
participate.
 

 Mr. Jerry Dixon, Seward Elementary QUEST teacher, thanked the Board for their 
work and stated that he has enjoyed working for the District for the past 12 years.  He 
stated that he will be on sabbatical next year and hopes to work on the Seward 
educational initiative and locate money to fund projects at the Sea Life Center and 
other organizations.  He stated that he is concerned about his children’s education 
and he and his wife have been considering whether to leave their children in public 
school next year.  He stated that they have decided to leave their children in school 
because Seward has excellent schools and superior teachers.  He asked the Board to 
continue to support the Seward schools and teachers.
 

 Dr. Anderson acknowledged Mr. Dixon’s comments and commended him for being 
an excellent teacher and for being chosen as BP Teacher of the Year.
 

 Mrs. Kim Reierson, parent, stated that she is feeling the budget crunch with both 
children. She stated that her daughter was forced to take study hall in high school 
because there were no other classes for her to take during fourth period.  She stated 
that the study hall issue is an ongoing problem from last year and anticipates that it 
will be a problem next year as well.  She stated that her son is facing the possibility 
of having 35 students in his classroom next year.  She stated that she realizes that 
Seward is not the only area facing budget problems but stated that funds and budgets 
can be manipulated and other resources can be used.  She asked the Board to be 
creative and not to forget the Seward community.
 

 Ms. Theresa Butts, Seward parent, stated that she has always had high standards for 
her children’s education and noted that she was thrilled with the quality of Seward 
Elementary School.  She stated that if the budget situation does not improve, she will 
consider educating her children elsewhere.  She stated that she does not want to put 
them in private school but does not see any other options if the District is not 
adequately funded.
 

 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (3 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS (continued): Ms. Carol Griswold, Seward parent, referred to a recent newspaper article that 

succinctly explained the education funding trend and added that it is clear that there 
is a continuing decline in population and that if the state continues to base education 
funding on the number of students, they will not receive an adequate education. She 
reported that Seward Elementary does not have a music program or an art teacher 
and noted that offering specials is a problem throughout all small schools across the 
Peninsula.  She asked the Board to reevaluate the music programs so they are 
continually funded and not based on the number of students.  She stated that the high 
school cannot have a band or choir if the elementary students coming into the high 
school have not been exposed to a music program.  She stated that because of block 
scheduling, her son has had to take too many study halls at Seward High.  She stated 
that the teachers run out of things to do and resort to showing video tapes, allow 
students to work on homework, or talk.  She stated that it is not a stimulating 
education and is not looking forward to her daughter’s attendance at the high school.  
She stated that the poorer that public education becomes, the more students will 
leave.  She stated that if the District can provide an excellent education, home 
schooled students will return to public education which will bring up the enrollment.
 

 Mr. Marc Swanson, Seward Elementary teacher, stated that classrooms that have 35 
sixth grade students are too large.  He reviewed the projected enrollment at Seward 
Elementary and noted that two teachers were cut for next school year and asked the 
Board to return one of the positions.
 

 Mr. Charlie Crangle, Seward Elementary teacher, expressed concern that some of the 
projects that he enjoys will be hindered because of the number of students in the 
classroom.  He stated that in 1990 he taught in a classroom of 35 students at Seward 
Elementary and added that he felt like a warden or a lion tamer.   He stated that 
fortunately, in November, the school received another teacher position but it was 
difficult for the students to make the transition.  He stated that Mr. Kingsland 
presented some convincing statistics to the administration regarding the projected 
enrollment and further explained that the enrollment increases after the student count 
in October.  He asked the Board to look at the statistics again and acknowledge that 
the Seward community is concerned about the education of the children.  He stated 
that it is difficult to deliver quality education when there are high student numbers in 
classrooms.  He agreed with Ms. Griswold’s comments regarding the music program 
and added that Seward Elementary lost the program, regained it, and will lose it 
again next year.  He stated that it is discouraging to suffer through year after year of 
budget cuts.  He stated that in five years 65% of Seward Elementary teachers will be 
eligible for retirement and expressed concern that the Board will not be able to 
maintain a veteran staff unless something is done now.  He encouraged the Board to 
work hard with the legislature during the next 10 days and added that there are a 
couple of resistant legislators on the Peninsula that need to be lobbied by parents and 
Board members.
 

 
 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS (continued): Mr. Jerry Olive, Seward Elementary special education teacher, stated that the talk 

among teachers is not about teaching anymore, it is about managing and 
management.  He stated that the legislature must be made aware of the funding 
problem.  He expressed frustration that there are too many study halls at the high 
school, which discourages the students.  He expressed concern that money for special 
education is being cut. He stated that the District is obligated by law to write an 
individual education program for special needs students.  He stated that the 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (4 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

individual needs of students are not being considered but instead it is the number of 
students and the time available to serve them.  He stated that special education 
programs need more money to provide more teachers so that caseloads are not as 
high.
 

 Ms. Sharon Ganser, Seward area parent, expressed concern that her daughter, who is 
a senior, has had to take two college courses, is a classroom aide, and a volunteer at 
the Alaska Vocational Technical Training Center.  She stated that the only high 
school class her daughter is taking this school year is anatomy because there was 
nothing else available.  She stated that she is not happy that her other daughter is 
taking study hall because there was nothing else offered.  She stated that the situation 
will be the same during the second semester and that her daughter will have to enroll 
in another study hall.  She stated that her older daughter had enough credits to 
graduate during her junior year.  She stated that when she was a student thirty years 
ago she had many courses to choose from and suggested that the state funding 
formula be changed for middle-sized schools.  She stated that smaller schools seem 
to have more to offer than middle-sized schools.  She suggested that the legislature 
be asked to change the funding formula to give all children a fair chance, not just the 
children in Anchorage or in very small communities. 
 

 Ms. Melissa Olver, Seward Middle/High School art teacher, stated that she is feeling 
the parents’ frustration over the lack of classes for the number of students.  She stated 
that over the past five years the school has lost five teachers for approximately 20 
fewer students. She stated that the loss equals to 30 fewer classes.  She stated that the 
District needs to give back the opportunities to Seward students.  She stated that 
inflation has affected the schools greatly and that the funding formula is not 
working.  She stated that she supports the parents who have spoken to the Board and 
noted that she hears the same comments from her students.  She asked the Board to 
give the Seward community an idea of what can be done.
 

 Dr. Anderson suggested that some of the problems that were expressed regarding 
block scheduling can be handled at the school level.  He stated that the Board 
recognizes the concerns regarding funding and added that many District schools are 
experiencing identical problems.  He stated that the Board will continue to do the 
best to meet individual needs.
 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE, SITE 
COUNCIL, AND/OR P.T.A., K.P.A.A., K.
P.E.A., K.P.E.S.A.:

Ms. Cindy Ecklund, Seward Site Council president, stated that the Seward 
community would like to have someone locally on the School Board.  She stated that 
the Site Council and community are anticipating the Seward Middle School code 
compliance report.  She stated that the Council has decided to meet through the 
summer so that building needs for next year can be addressed, based on the 
compliance report.  She reminded those present that the legislature is still in session 
and encouraged those present to send a public opinion message, and reported that 
education funding legislation is currently in the senate.  She asked the Board to 
consider reviewing classroom numbers in July so that additional teachers can be 
hired, if necessary, and avoid a transition during the school year.
 

 
 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE, SITE 
COUNCIL, AND/OR P.T.A., K.P.A.A., K.
P.E.A., K.P.E.S.A. (continued):

Mr. Mike Davis, Seward Site Council member, stated that the funding cycle repeats 
itself each year throughout Alaska.  He stated that the cycle must be broken or 
education in the state will go “down the tubes”, and noted that it is no longer a 
money issue it is a demoralizing issue.  He pointed out that the state is arguing over 
whether there is enough money to fund the staff who are responsible for teaching the 
state standards.  He suggested that the community consider the use of technology to 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (5 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

deliver education in a more efficient and student-centered manner.  He encouraged 
those present to tell legislators that the education community is tired of being 
demoralized, of putting children second, and of unfunded mandates.
 

 Mr. Dave Diekgraeff, Seward Site Council member, expressed concern that next year 
there may be 36 students in a classroom and that Seward Elementary will loose 2.5 
teachers. He stated that the Seward Middle/High facility is 30 years old as well as 
some of the equipment.  He asked the Board to help seek maintenance for the school 
because it may be five years or longer before a new school could be constructed and 
cautioned that it is an unsafe situation for students.  Mr. Dieckgraeff noted that the 
Seward community has a large number of volunteers who help in the schools but 
they cannot take the place of teachers.  He stated that the pupil-teacher ratio must be 
lowered because students are missing out on many elective courses.  He asked the 
Board to help the community lobby the legislature for more educational funding.
 

 Mr. Charlie Crangle, reported that the Seward Community organized a rally for 
education and used an analogy of Seward as the canary in the coal mine.  He stated 
that the education funding problems will affect the rest of the state very soon.  He 
stated that declining enrollment is only part of the problem and that inflation and the 
area cost differential also play a large part.  He stated that during a recent 
teleconference, Senator Torgerson asked why the District did not have a lobbyist like 
the University of Alaska.  He stated that the District does not have the money or 
administrative staff to dedicate towards lobbying efforts.   He suggested that the 
Board join forces with the Assembly and explore the potential of suing the state of 
Alaska for inadequate funding of education.  He stated that it is unbelievable that the 
Anchorage School District has a $17 million surplus where the Kenai Peninsula 
Borough School District is bleeding.  He showed a video clip of the Seward rally for 
education.  He encouraged the Board to look “outside of the box” for solutions to 
fund education.  He asked the Board to look for ways to fund more teachers so 
students can receive the education they deserve.
 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS: Dr. Peterson reported that she has received the usual correspondence from the state 
department.
 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT: Dr. Peterson reported that May 5 through 11 is Teacher Appreciation Week and 
encouraged those present to show appreciation for teachers.  She thanked District 
teachers for their service.
 

Status on Technology Plan Implementation: Mr. Jim White presented the Technology Plan Implementation Report which 
included a summary of how the six-year project will be completed in three years and 
still remain true to the core tenants of the plan.
 

 Ms. Germano noted that the Connections Program helped the District Technology 
Plan move ahead of schedule.
 

 
 
Future Budget Considerations: Dr. Donna Peterson presented the Future Budget Considerations Report which 

examines and provides position statements regarding the elimination of cocurricular 
activities, an increase to the pupil-teacher ratio and the closing of several schools.  
She explained that the report centers on items that the Board continues to discuss 
each year during the budget cycle.  She stated that the administration needed to 
gather information on how decisions on these issues will impact students.   She stated 
that recommendations will be forthcoming but added that no schools are slated for 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (6 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

closure at this time.  She announced that the report is available online.
 

BOARD REPORTS: Ms. Mullins reported that three Board Members traveled to Juneau to participate in 
the AASB Legislative Fly-In and to meet with legislators.  She reported that the 
Board was able to meet with most of the legislators except the senators who were in 
caucus.  She reported that the Board asked the legislature for a long range fiscal plan 
and to put money in the foundation formula and not in the Learning Opportunity 
Grants.  She stated that the legislature is currently considering adding money to the 
LOG grants, which is allocated per pupil.   She explained that if the additional money 
went into the base allocation, the District would receive an increase from the 
Borough.  She noted that at this time the LOG grants do not allow additional money 
from the Borough.  She reported that many legislators are  nervous about opening up 
the funding formula before results of the area cost differential study is complete.  She 
reported that the legislature first wants to know what it will cost to bring the entire 
state education system up to date from 1987.  She stated that she was impressed with 
the helpfulness of the District legislators, and noted that they have been working 
hard.  She reported that an emphasis needs to be directed at the senate, especially the 
Health, Education and Social Service Committee, Finance Committee and 
Conference Committee.
 

 Mrs. Gilman reported that she also attended the AASB Legislative Fly-In.  She noted 
that the Board has been trying to encourage the legislature to adequately forward 
fund education.  She agreed that class sizes of 35 students are unmanageable and 
unreasonable.  She suggested that every person in attendance send a message to the 
senate every day until the session adjourns.  She stated that she felt certain that the 
House has made education a number one priority but that the Senate has not.  She 
explained that the $7 million increase in the funding formula was not an increase 
because the legislature did not hold the District accountable for the decrease in 
attendance. She stated that the area cost differential assigned to the District is not 
adequate.
 

 Ms. Germano stated that the Senate will say that they have done something for 
education.  She stated that she believes that the House did the right thing by passing a 
long range fiscal plan.  She stated that until the entire legislature realizes that the 
public is serious about adequately funding education, the District is in trouble.  She 
stated that her message to the Senate is to deal with the fiscal plan that was sent to 
them from the House.
 

 
 

 

BOARD REPORTS (continued): Dr. Peterson reported that representatives of the District have traveled to Juneau nine 
separate weeks out of the session with teams of teachers, principals, Board members, 
administration, and parents. She stated that parents traveled five separate weeks, 
Board members traveled two separate weeks, and the administration traveled three 
separate times.  She reported that the last group to travel to Juneau was from NEA 
and KPEA.  She reported that she talked with each group about the District’s stance 
on each piece of education legislation.  She stated that she gave the same presentation 
at several schools.  She reported that approximately 30 to 40 people traveled to 
Juneau on behalf of the District and were heard by legislators regarding the “Leave 
no District Behind” proposal.  
 

 

 Dr. Anderson thanked Mr. Long, Mr. Sprague, and other Borough Assembly 
members for providing the funds for the parent trips to Juneau.  He stated that the 
Board appreciates the Assembly’s assistance and their support for education.
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (7 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

 

 Ms. Germano thanked the parents who traveled to Juneau to lobby for the District. 
She stated that she found it interesting that on the Board’s second Juneau trip many 
legislators were well aware of the District’s message regarding education funding. 
 

 

 Mrs. Gilman reported that every legislator or staff person acknowledged the 
District’s cost differential plight and referred the Board to the study that is due in 
November. She stated that if in January 2003 the legislature is still not willing to 
remedy the area cost differential problem then the District should become resolute.
 

 

 Dr. Anderson explained that the Board has been very proactive and tries to do what is 
best for students.  He explained that the Board members are private citizens with 
other forms of employment and work on Board of Education business on their own 
time.  He stated that the Board members and administration are individuals dedicated 
to helping the educational system.
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: Items presented on the Consent Agenda were Approval of Budget Transfers; Long 
Term Substitute Teacher Contract; Resignations; New Teacher Assignment for 2001-
2002; and New Teacher Assignments for 2002-2003.
 

 

Budget Transfers: Mrs. Melody Douglas recommended the Board approve budget transfers Numbers 
458 and 525 which respectively transfers $37,654 and $130,790 to cover the 
purchase of staff and associated fringe benefits for summer school remediation 
programs; Number 526 for $98,227 to purchase two special education buses for 
Seward bus routes; and Number 543 for $139,350 to purchase software for the 
schools included in the Year 3 Tech Plan.
 

 

Long Term Substitute Teacher Contract: Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve long-term substitute teacher contracts 
for Rita Geller, physical education, Soldotna Elementary and Deborah Brophy, 
special education/resource, Soldotna High.
 

Resignations: Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve resignations effective the end of the 
2001-2002 school year for Kristin Green, Grades 1 and 2, Sears Elementary; Fiona 
McKeon, special education/severe, Seward High School; Berry Swenson, principal, 
Kenai Central High School; and Tom Weller, Title I Teacher, Kachemak Selo.
 

 
New Teacher Assignment, 2001-2002: Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve a teaching appointment for the 2001-

2002 school year for Amy Little, school psychologist, Pupil Services.
 

 
 
New Teacher Assignments, 2002-2003: Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve teaching appointments for the 2002-

2003 school year for Ned Clooten, math and athletic director, Nikiski Middle High 
School; Kay Downs, preschool special needs teacher, Sears Elementary; Kevin 
Downs, special education/resource, Soldotna Middle School; Theresa Owens, special 
education, intensive needs at K-Beach Elementary; and Timothy Wight, special 
education, resource, Skyview High School.
 

ACTION Mrs. Crawford moved the Board approve Consent Agenda Items Numbers 1 through 
5.  Ms. Germano seconded.
 

 Ms. Germano asked whether the summer school remediation programs are 
districtwide elementary through high school programs.  Mrs. Douglas confirmed that 
the summer remedial programs will be offered for elementary through high school 
students and all programs are offered at the same time.  Mr. Stewart explained that 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (8 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

the summer programs are designed for students who need remediation and will 
operate June 3-28.
 

 Motion carried unanimously.
 

Nontenure Teachers for Tenure, 2002-2003:
 

Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve a list of nontenure teachers for tenure 
for the 2002-2003 school year.
 

ACTION Mrs. Crawford moved the Board approve a list of nontenure teachers for tenure for 
the 2002-2003 school year.  Mrs. Mullins seconded.
 

 Motion carried unanimously.
 

Tentative Nontenure Teacher Assignments, 
2002-2003:
 

 
Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve a list of tentative nontenure teacher 
assignments beginning the 2002-2003 school year.
 

ACTION Mrs. Mullins moved the Board approve a list of tentative nontenure teacher 
assignments beginning the 2002-2003 school year.  Mrs. Crawford seconded.
 

 Ms. Germano expressed appreciation that more teachers are being assigned to 
positions in their certificated area but stated she is concerned that there are still some 
teachers being assigned outside of their certificated area.
 

 Motion carried unanimously.
 

Cocurricular Activities and Handbooks:
 

Mr. Syverson explained that prior to the meeting, the Board conducted a worksession 
to review changes to the Cocurricular Activities Handbooks as proposed by the 
member schools of the Kenai Peninsula Student Activities Association.  He noted 
that during the worksession the Board created an addendum which is also being 
recommended for approval.
 

ACTION Mrs. Gilman moved the Board approve the changes to the Cocurricular Activities 
Handbook.  Mrs. Crawford seconded.
 

ACTION Ms. Germano moved the Board approve an amendment to strike language in Item E1. 
and the following language added, “If eligibility is not regained during that week, or 
if the student has an incomplete (“I”) that is not made up in that week, the student 
remains ineligible until the Monday following the next eligibility check date.” Mrs. 
Crawford seconded.
 

 
 
Cocurricular Activities and Handbooks 
(continued):
 

Mr. Arness expressed concern about the effect of the amendment because it does not 
address the same question of the original motion.  Mr. Arness explained that an 
“incomplete” is not considered a failing grade for the purposes of eligibility.  He 
stated that if a student is missing from school and misses a test or a key homework 
assignment making them “incomplete” but they missed school on a pre approved 
basis as opposed to being “incomplete” at eligibility check time, then they would 
have the opportunity to make up the work and would still be ineligible.  Mr. Arness 
explained that the proposed language in the main motion addresses, “where students 
have time” per school policy.
 

 Ms. Germano stated that when asked about school policy, the response was that it 
was a KPSAA policy.

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (9 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

 
 Mr. Arness explained that KPSAA was trying to focus on a specific problem not the 

whole problem of “incompletes.”  Mr. Steve Pautz, Seward High principal provided 
comments regarding student “incompletes.”
 

RECESS At 9:37 p.m., Dr. Anderson called a recess.
 

RECONVENE AFTER RECESS: At 9:43 p.m., the Board reconvened in regular session.
 

 Ms. Germano removed her amendment with concurrence of the second. 
 

ACTION Mr. Arness moved the Board approve an amendment to remove the high school 
revisions from the KPSAA recommendation.  Mrs. Mullins seconded.
 

 Amendment carried unanimously.
 

 Amended motion carried unanimously.
 

Administrator Appointments:
 

Dr. Peterson recommended the Board approve the transfer of Sylvia Reynolds to the 
principal position at K-Beach Elementary, and the appointment of John Alan Owens 
as the assistant principal of Nikiski Middle/High School.
 

ACTION Mrs. Germano moved the Board approve the transfer of Sylvia Reynolds to the 
principal position at K-Beach Elementary, and the appointment of John Alan Owens 
as the assistant principal of Nikiski Middle/High School.  Mrs. Mullins seconded.
 

 Motion carried unanimously.
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS: Mr. Ron Long, Assembly Member, stated that he commended the Board for their 
hard work and added that it is a tough job and getting tougher.
 

 Ms. Sandra Wassilie thanked the Board for coming to Seward.  She stated that she 
understands what the Board is going though. She reported that she traveled to Juneau 
to advocate for funding for education and noted that she had a similar experience to 
Ms. Germano and Mrs. Gilman.  She thanked those present for their attendance.  She 
stated that the foundation formula is not working and needs to be reviewed.  She 
stated that the legislature should look ahead and not wait for the cost differential 
study to be completed.  
 

 
 
BOARD COMMENTS: Mr. Poindexter thanked those in attendance and added that all of the comments and 

suggestions that were expressed have been discussed by the Board many times.  He 
reported that he recently volunteered to drive activity buses to Wasilla and 
Fairbanks.  He noted that the Mat-Su School District provided very nice busses 
complete with storage compartments under the bus and a bathroom.  He stated that he 
wonders how they can afford such nice busses when the KPBSD struggles to keep 
their busses running.  He reported that he substituted in a physical education class 
with 66 students and noted that it was difficult to manage that many students. He 
stated that the administration will come up with a creative idea to balance the budget 
and noted that the North Star Borough in Fairbanks is offering science credit for 
community schools classes.  He reported that his daughter was assigned a study hall 
class and created her own curriculum in an area she was interested, and that she had 
tutors and mentors who helped her with her studies.  Mr. Poindexter stated that 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (10 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

schools can help with diversity in the economy, provided they have the opportunity.  
He stated that the District needs to figure out how to offer a comprehensive 
vocational education program at all high schools.  Mr. Poindexter stated that he 
would like to discuss class fees at the next meeting.
 

 Mr. Arness stated that the Board is aware of all of the frustrations that were 
expressed.  He assured those present that each concern has been heard.  He stated that 
the block scheduling decision has been made at the school level and recommended 
that parents speak to the principal.
 

 Mrs. Mullins thanked the student dancers from Seward Elementary for their 
performance.  She stated that the Board has a difference of opinion regarding block 
scheduling and considered discussing the issue at a Board meeting but decided that it 
was a local decision.  She suggested that parents speak with their site based council 
and principal if they wish to change from the block schedule.  Ms. Germano stated 
that she appreciated the large audience and was impressed with the plea for more 
teachers in the classroom. 
 

 Mrs. Crawford thanked the Seward community for their concern.  She reported that 
many people ask what they can do about declining funds but are not willing to give 
up their Permanent Fund check or initiate a state income tax.  She stated that 
something has to be done to produce a long-range solution.  She thanked the Seward 
Elementary dancers for their performance and Mr. Hofseth for the Hope Elementary/
High School presentation.  She reported that she will work on accreditation at Homer 
High.
 

 Ms. Germano thanked the Seward Elementary student dancers.  She invited those 
present to visit the Pratt Museum to view a special exhibit titled, Looking Both 
Ways: Heritage and Identity of the Alutiiq People.  She stated that the exhibit 
includes artifacts and visual and oral presentations.  She stated that the block 
scheduling issue is a local decision and recommended the parents bring up the 
conversation at a site council meeting.  She encouraged the Seward High parents to 
look at other schools (inside and outside of the District) to see what they can offer.  
She stated that she believes in putting the best teachers in front of students.
 

 
 
BOARD COMMENTS (continued): Mrs. Gilman thanked Seward Elementary staff and students for their presentation and 

noted that students scored in the 71 percentile in math.  She announced that Kim 
Reemson, a parent volunteer at Sears Elementary, has been chosen to receive the 
First Lady Volunteer Award, for starting the holiday drive for needy families which 
has grown throughout all of the Kenai area schools.  She thanked KPEA and KPESA 
for inviting her to speak at the Stand Up For Schools Rally.  She noted that Sears 
Elementary teacher, Kris Green’s resignation was approved on the Consent Agenda.  
She stated that Mrs. Green is an outstanding teacher and noted that it is obvious to 
her which students have had Mrs. Green as a teacher.
 

 Dr. Anderson recognized the Board as some of the finest people to work with and 
that even though the members come from many different backgrounds; their 
decisions are made in the best interest of students. He stated that he appreciates the 
fine work that the public has done to lobby the legislature for additional education 
funding.  He stated that the Board will not adjourn the meeting; instead they would 
recess with the possibility of reconvening within the next couple of weeks.
 

RECESS At 10:09 p.m., Dr. Anderson called a recess.

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (11 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

 
RECONVENE AFTER RECESS: At _________ p.m., on _________ at ___________, Soldotna, Alaska, the Board 

reconvened in regular session.
 

ADJOURN: At _______________ p.m., ________________ moved the School Board Meeting be 
adjourned.  ___________________ seconded.
 
Motion carried unanimously.
 

                                                                                          Respectfully submitted,

 
 
                                                                                                                 _________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                 Dr. Nels Anderson, President

 
                                                                                                                 _________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                 Mrs. Sammy Crawford, Clerk

The Minutes of May 6, 2002, 
have not been approved as of 
May 23, 2002.

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Minutes050602-Seward.htm (12 of 12)10/20/2006 3:20:51 PM



September 11, 1998

 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                   
 
 
 
May 28, 2002
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M
 
 
TO:                  Board of Education
 
FROM:            Melody Douglas
                        Chief Financial Officer
 
SUBJECT:       Budget Transfers 
 
Budget transfer number 621 in the amount of $13,267.00 is being requested to offset a long-
term substitute teacher contract at Skyview High School.
 
This budget transfer exceeds $10,000; therefore, it requires Board of Education approval per 
Board Policy 3120.  Approval by the Board of Education is recommended.
 
Enclosure

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/BudgetTransfer621.htm10/20/2006 3:20:57 PM



September 15, 1997

 
 
 
 
 
June 3, 2002
 
 
TO:                          Board of Education             
 
 
FROM:                    Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services 
 
 
SUBJECT:             Approval of New Teacher Assignments/2002-03 Item – 10 a (2)
 
 
It is recommended that the following teacher assignments be approved for the 2002-03 school year:
 
 
RESIDENCE NAME DEGREE INSTITUTION MAJOR ATC EXP ASSIGN
        
Riverside, CA. Clayton D. Kramer MA California State 

University, 
California

Education K-12 Specific LD; 
Mild/Moderate 
Mentally 
Handicapped, 
Health Imp., 
Emotionally 
Disturbed

7 States High School Special Ed./
Resource; District wide 
Special Services

        
Anchorage, AK. Linda E. Hampson MEd. University of 

Alaska, 
Anchorage

Counseling K-12 Counselor;
Sec SpEd-LD; 
Sec History

13 AK. School Counselor, Homer 
High School

        
Clam Gulch, AK. Debra Rose Blossom BEd. University of 

Alaska, 
Anchorage

Education Elementary === .50 FTE Permanent;
.50 FTE Temporary Grade 
5 Teacher, 
K-Beach Elementary

        

Kenai, AK. Dawn M. Brighton BA Eastern 
Washington 
University, WA.

English 4-12 English === English; Kenai Central High 

        
Nikiski, AK. Christopher  A. Jenness BEd. Univ. of AK. 

Anchorage
Elem. Ed Elementary === .50 FTE Middle School 

Generalist, Nikiski Middle/
High School

        

 
 
RESIDENCE NAME DEGREE INSTITUTION MAJOR ATC EXP ASSIGN
Seward, AK. Julianna R. DeBoard BEd. University of 

Alaska, Southeast
Elem. Ed K-8 Elementary 

Ed; Special 
Education

=== Temporary, Title I Reading; 
Seward Elementary

        

Kasilof, AK. Teresa A. Cowart BEd. Univ. of AK. 
Fairbanks

Elem. Ed Elementary 19 AK Temporary, Grade 6, 
Tustumena Elementary

        
        

        
        

 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/NewTchgAssign2002_03.htm10/20/2006 3:20:58 PM



August 7, 2000

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 3, 2002
 
 
 
TO:                   Board of Education
 
FROM:              Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services
 
SUBJECT:         Approval of Tentative Non-tenure Teacher Assignment/2002-03 Item 10 a (3)
 
It is recommended that employment for the following non-tenure teachers be approved for the 2002-03 school year.  The 
following lists a tentative assignment for the non-tenured teachers:
 
 
Employee Location Assignment Certification
    
Don R. Drury Aurora Borealis Charter Grade 3 Elementary; Reading
    
Sally A. Burns Kachemak-Selo Title I Reading (Temp) Elementary
    
Carol A. Boehmler K-Beach Elementary Grade 3 Elementary
    
Lisa M. Chambers K-Beach Elementary Title I Reading (Temp) Elementary
    
Christopher Towne Paul Banks & Homer Area Elementary Music K-12 Music
    
Katrina A. Adamson Redoubt Elementary Grades 4/5, or grade 5 Elementary
    
Matthew J. Faris Redoubt Elementary Grades 2/3 Elementary; Anthropology
    
Cindy J. Hurst Sears Elementary Grades K,1,2 or 2 (Temp) Elementary
    
Teri L. Haddeland Seward Elementary Upper Elementary Elementary
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/nontenureAssign.htm10/20/2006 3:20:59 PM



Substitute Contracts

 
 
June 3, 2002
 
 
 
TO:                  Board of Education
 
From:              Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services
 
SUBJECT:     Approval of Substitute Teacher Contract – Item 10 a (4)
 
The Administration recommends the following substitute teacher contract be approved:
 
 
Rita Pfeniger Math Homer Middle School
   
Matthew Fischer PE/Health Soldotna High School
   
JoAnn McClain Math/SS/Lang.Arts Seward Middle School
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/SubstituteContracts.htm10/20/2006 3:20:59 PM



Resignations

                                                                                    
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 3, 2002
 
 
TO:                   Board of Education         
 
FROM:              Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services
 
SUBJECT:         Approval of Resignations - Item 10a (5)
 
 
 
It is recommended the following resignations be approved. 
 
                                                            
Celia Anderson Art Specialist Mountain View Elementary; effective 

May 24, 2002
   
Amy Galloway Generalist Voznesenka School; effective 

May 24, 2002
   
Margaret Brewster Librarian Homer High School; 

effective May 24, 2002
   
Brenda Dolma Science Homer Middle School, effective

July 20, 2002. 
   
JoEllen Fowler Grade 4/5 Tustumena Elementary, effective

May 24, 2002
   
Michelle Garnto Special Ed, Resource Kenai Central High, effective 

May 24, 2002
   
Margaret Ladd Quest; Library West Homer Elementary, effective 

May 24, 2002
   
Heather Pancratz Middle School Coordinator Homer Middle School, effective 

May 24, 2002
   
Anne Pfitzner Grade 6 Soldotna Elementary, effective May 24, 2002
   
Richard Putney Director Human Resources, effective

July 1, 2002.
   
Kathy A. Sandoval Special Ed, Resource Seward Middle/High School, 

effective May 23, 2002
                                                                                           
 
 
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/Resignations.htm10/20/2006 3:21:00 PM



LOA-Certified

 
 
 
 
 
June 3, 2002
 
 
TO:                  Board of Education               
 
FROM:             Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services 
 
SUBJECT:     Requests for an Unpaid Leave of Absence/Certified – Item 10 a (6)
 
 
It is recommended the following requests for unpaid leave of absence be approved for 2002-03 school 
year:
 

Liana Bigham Social Studies Kenai Central High
   

L. Joseph Trujillo Spanish Skyview High School
   

Penny Tinker Special Ed Stering Elementary
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/LOA_Certified.htm10/20/2006 3:21:00 PM



LOA-Support

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 3, 2002
 
 
TO:                Board of Education               
 
FROM:          Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative 
Services
 
SUBJECT:     Approval of Leave of Absence Requests/Support- Item- 10 a (7)
 
 
It is recommended that the following request for a unpaid leave of absence be
approved for the 2002-03 school year:
 

Etta Mae Near Carl Perkins Voc Ed Tutor Skyview
   

Johnnie Standifer Custodian Tebughna
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/LOA_Support.htm10/20/2006 3:21:00 PM



August 7, 2000

 
 
 
 
 
June 3, 2002
 
TO:                   Board of Education
 

FROM:              Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services
 
SUBJECT:         Approval of Non-tenure Teachers for Tenure/2002-03 - Item 
 
It is recommended that employment and tenure for the following non-tenure teachers be approved for the 
2002-03 school year.  The following assignments are tentative:
 
Location Employee Assignment Certification
    
Kenai Middle School Kristy L. Schmelzenbach Title V Reading Elementary
    
Nikiski Elementary Kristin E. Morrow Title I Reading 7-12 History, Reading, 

SS
    
Redoubt Elementary Tara J. Rosin Title I Reading Elementary
    
Sears Elementary Cindy M. Thomas Kindergarten Elementary
    
Soldotna Elementary Janet S. Boyce Title I Reading Elementary
    
Soldotna High School Douglas Gordon Vocational Education 7-12 Industrial Arts
    
Soldotna Middle School Andrea Eggleston Art K-12 Art
    
Soldotna Middle School Virginia M. Morgan Title V Reading Elementary 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/NontenureTchrTenure.HTM10/20/2006 3:21:01 PM



September 11, 1998

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 28, 2002                                                                  
 
M E M O R A N D U M
 
To:                   Board of Education                                                       
 
From:               Melody Douglas

Chief Financial Officer              
 
Subject:            Budget Transfer
 
The Board approved FY02 budget revision included a $400,000 allocation for the service 
recognition program offered to employees.  The amount needed to cover the cost of this program 
is $183,550 leaving $216,450 for other purposes.  A budget transfer will be processed 
transferring $183, 550 into the appropriate accounts for those individuals selecting this option.  
 
As you know, these FY02 funds resulted from the retroactive interest allocation received from the 
Kenai Peninsula Borough Assembly this spring.  This is a one time only allocation, therefore, 
these funds should not be committed to cover on-going expenditures.  
 
The amount due Xerox for the prior buyout balances per the contract is $40,751.   The 
administration requests a budget transfer in this amount to cover these costs.  (Please note 
$41,985 remains in dispute with Xerox for early termination charges (ETC).  ETCs are generally 
considered to be a penalty for early termination of a contract.  The contract was terminated early 
by mutual agreement at the suggestion of Xerox.  This matter is in the hands of legal council.) 
 
The approved FY03 budget does not include funds to purchase the social studies and health 
curriculum adopted for next year.  The amount requested for this curriculum was $810,609.   The 
administration recommends a budget transfer of the remaining $175,699 toward the purchase of 
this curriculum at the close of this fiscal year.
 
These budget transfers exceed $10,000; therefore they require Board of Education approval per 
Board Policy 3120.
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/BudgetTransferFY02.HTM (1 of 2)10/20/2006 3:21:01 PM



September 11, 1998

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/BudgetTransferFY02.HTM (2 of 2)10/20/2006 3:21:01 PM



May 24, 2002

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 24, 2002
 
 
 
TO:                  School Board
 
THROUGH:     Dr. Donna Peterson, Superintendent
 
FROM:            Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent
                        Administrative Services
 
RE:                   Seldovia Boys and Girls Club Building Study
 
 
Attached is a proposal from Boys and Girls Club requesting Board approval of a study to design 
and build on Borough property adjacent to Susan B. English School in Seldovia.  They need 
Board approval to begin this study; once the study is completed they would be required to come 
back to the Board for final approval before any action could be taken.
 
The Boys and Girls Club is requesting a fifteen (15) year lease.  Administration is recommending 
there be a five (5) year clause within the lease, should there be a problem or in the event that 
Susan B. English School should need to expand.

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/StudyRequest.htm10/20/2006 3:21:02 PM



Situation:

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 28, 2002
 
TO:                  Board of Education
 
THROUGH:     Dr. Donna Peterson, Superintendent                      
 
FROM:            Melody Douglas, Chief Financial Officer                       
 
SUBJECT:       Approval of FY03 Budget – revised budget      
 
The Kenai Peninsula Borough School District will receive $2,116,310 additional funding outside 
the foundation funding formula per a communication from the Department of Education and 
Early Development (DEED).  This amount is comprised of $1,700,871 for learning opportunity 
grants (with expenditure limitations) and $415,439 for District operations.  These funds have 
been awarded 
on a one-year basis.  These funds are required to be accounted for in the District’s operating fund.
 
FY03 Budget
 
Board approved operating fund budget - April 1, 2002             $74,390,220
 
Additional funding per the Alaska State Legislature                                    2,116,310
 
                  Total Operating Fund Budget                                                76,506,530
 
FY03 Special Revenue Funds                                                                 15,527,609
 
                   Total All Funds                                                                  $92,034,139    
 
The learning opportunity grant criteria has not been released by the DEED.  It is recommended 
these funds be placed in the instructional department ‘other’ account until a budget may be 
developed and presented to the DEED for approval.  
 
It is also recommended that the $415,439 be allocated toward the FY03 social studies and health 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/BudgetTransferFY03.HTM (1 of 2)10/20/2006 3:21:02 PM

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/FY03Spreadsheet.htm


Situation:

curriculum adoption.   
 
The administration recommends Board of Education approval for a FY03 operating fund budget 
of $76,506,530 and a total budget for all funds of $92,034,139.
 
 
 
 
 
 
             
                         
 
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/BudgetTransferFY03.HTM (2 of 2)10/20/2006 3:21:02 PM



New Admin assign

 
 
 
 
 
 
June 3, 2002
 
 
 
 
TO:                  Board of Education               
 
FROM:            Donna Peterson, Ed.D.,Superintendent
 
SUBJECT:     2002-03 Administrator Appointments - Item 
 
It is recommended that the following administrator appointments be approved for the 
2002-03 school year:
 
Dennis Dunn Principal Kenai Central High School
   
Lori Manion Principal North Star Elementary
   
Sharon Moock Assistant Principal Kenai Middle School
   
Sharon Conley Principal/Teacher Razdolna School
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/AdminAssign.htm10/20/2006 3:21:02 PM



Business and Noninstructional Operations

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 28, 2002
 
 
 
TO:                  Board of Education
 
FROM:             Melody Douglas

Chief Financial Officer              
 
SUBJECT:        BP 3440 Revision
 
The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued a pronouncement # 34, requiring 
governmental entities to implement a new financial reporting model.  The District is required to 
implement this change when reporting FY02 financial activities.
 
Included in this change is a requirement to depreciate fixed assets.   The District maintains a fixed asset 
inventory in excess of $20 million.  Maintaining depreciation records on this size of inventory is not 
practical considering most of the inventory has a relatively short life cycle and the limitations on adding 
support staff. 
 
The industry recommendation is to maintain an inventory of all items currently valued in excess of $5,000 
for depreciation and financial reporting purposes.    Please note items in excess of $500 will continue to be 
tracked for insurance purposes.
 
The administration recommends Board approval of revised BP 3440.
             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business and Noninstructional Operations                                              BP  
3440
 
Inventories

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/BP3440.htm (1 of 3)10/20/2006 3:21:03 PM



Business and Noninstructional Operations

 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide for the proper control and 
conservation of district property.  He/she shall maintain an inventory for all 
items currently valued in excess of $500 at $5,000 or greater or a lesser 
amount if required by state or federal grant requirements or regulations.  
Information relative to items of lesser value may be maintained for 
insurance purposes.
 

(cf. 3270 – Disposal of Books, Equipment and Supplies)
(cf. 3290 – Gifts, Grants and Bequests)

(cf.  3400 – Management of District Assets/Accounts)
 
Legal Reference:

ALASKA STATUTES
14.11.011  Grant applications
14.11.017  School construction grant conditions
14.14.050  Annual audit
 
ALASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
4 AAC 06.120  Accounting and audit manuals, charts of accounts, code descriptions
4 AAC 51.300  Vocational facilities and equipment
 
CARL D. PERKINS VOCATIONAL EDUCATION ACT, Public Law 98-524, 99-159
34 CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, 74.132-74.140
Office of Management and Budget, Circular A-102, Attachment N, Property Management 
Standards

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/BP3440.htm (2 of 3)10/20/2006 3:21:03 PM



Business and Noninstructional Operations

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Adoption Date:  7/1/96

 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/BP3440.htm (3 of 3)10/20/2006 3:21:03 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/bp6146.1.htm (1 of 4)10/20/2006 3:21:04 PM

 
 

Curriculum & Assessment
Paula Christensen, Director, Elementary Education

Sam Stewart, Director, Secondary Education 
148 Binkley Street       Soldotna, Alaska  99669-7553
Phone  (907) 262-9805          Fax  (907) 262-6354

 

Kenai Peninsula Borough School District
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Memo To:       Members, Board of Education
 
From:              Sam Stewart
                        Director, Curriculum and Assessment
 
Through:        Gary Whiteley, Ed. D.
                        Assistant Superintendent of Instruction
 
Date:               May 23, 2002
 
Re:                  Policy Revision, First Reading
                        BP 6146.1 (High School Graduation Requirements)
 
 
 
The attached revision updates district policy BP 6146.1 (High School Graduation Requirements).
 
Current policy has language speaking to credit requirements for the graduating class of 2000-2001.  The suggested change will eliminate obsolete language 
in current policy.  
 
The administration recommends approval of this policy revision BP 6146.1.



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Instruction                                                                                          BP  6146.1(a)
 
High School Graduation Requirements
 
The purpose of graduation requirements is to set guidelines that will insure that each high school graduate is exposed to the depth 
and variety of learning experiences necessary for present and future social and economic survival. Graduation requirements should 
be specific enough to direct students into major curricular areas and yet flexible enough to provide for individual student's abilities 
and needs.  Completion of these requirements should be viewed as a minimal educational experience to be enriched through the 
selection of additional courses of students' choice.
 
Time Requirements
 
Students must attend high school (Grades 9-12) for a period of four years, eight semesters, or sixteen quarters unless they receive 
Board [or designee] approval for an alternative program.
 
Credit Requirements (For students scheduled to graduate in the year 2000-2001 and before.)
 
A total of 21 units composed of those requirements listed below.
 

1.       LANGUAGE ARTS - 4 credits including 1-1/2 written English credits, 1-1/2 literature credits, 1/2 oral English credit 
and 1/2 elective; (Students may take 1/2 elective only if they pass a writing proficiency test taken at the end of the 11th year.  
This will be a borough-wide test stressing writing skills mastered in the 9th, 10th, and 11th grades.)
 
2.       MATHEMATICS - 2 credits or successful completion of a Board-approved proficiency test indicating a working knowledge 
of basic arithmetic concepts;
 
3.       SCIENCE - 2 credits including 1 credit in the area of physical science and 1 credit in the area of life science or 1 credit 
in general science;

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/bp6146.1.htm (2 of 4)10/20/2006 3:21:04 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

 
4.     PHYSICAL EDUCATION AND RECREATION - 1 credit; (Advanced courses may not count toward meeting this requirement.  
After school activities in smaller secondary schools may be counted toward meeting this requirement.)

 
5.       CREATIVE ARTS - I credit; (music, crafts, dance, art, photography, drama, other)

 
                                                                                                            BP  6146.1(b)
 
High School Graduation Requirements (continued)

 
6.       PRACTICAL ARTS - I credit; (business education, home economics, building trades, power mechanics, welding, graphic 
arts, computer science)
 
7.       SOCIAL STUDIES - 3 credits - including I credit world history, 1 credit U.S. history, and I credit government and society;

 
8.       HEALTH - 0.5 CREDIT 
 
          As an alternative to the required health credit, a student may:
 

a.    request and complete, with a passing grade, the district health correspondence course or one offered by the State of 
Alaska; or
 
b,    take the course, but receive approval from the teacher to accomplish alternative assignments to class attendance 
and study of portions of the materials to which the student and his/her parents object.

 
9.       ELECTIVES - 6.5 or more credits may be taken as electives.
 

Any school lacking the staff or facility required to fulfill these requirements must apply to the Board through the assistant 
superintendent - instruction for permission to offer alternatives in specified curricular areas.
 
Credit Requirements (For students scheduled to graduate in the 2001-2002 school year and subsequent years.)
 
A total of 22 units composed of those requirements listed below:
 

1.       Language Arts - 4.0 credits
 
2.       Mathematics - 3.0 credits
 
3.       Social Studies - 3.0
 
4.       Science - 3.0 credits
 

5.  Physical Education - 1.0 credit with the option of waiving 1/2 credit for cocurricular participation

 
 
 
 
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/bp6146.1.htm (3 of 4)10/20/2006 3:21:04 PM



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

 
                                                                                                             BP  6146.1(c)
High School Graduation Requirements (continued)

 
6.       Health - .5 credit
 
7.       Practical and/or Creative Arts - 3.0 credits of practical or creative arts with a minimum of .5 practical arts and .5 
creative arts credit
 
8.       Electives - 4.5 credits or more may be taken as electives.

 
OPTIONAL METHODS OF SATISFYING REQUIREMENTS (Effective for the 1997-1998 and subsequent school years)
 

1.       Students will be allowed to waive the elective l/2 credit physical education graduation requirement through participation 
in athletic activities sponsored by the Kenai Peninsula Borough School District.  
 
2.       The student must substantiate that they have participated in a minimum of 4,050 minutes (67.5 hours) in order to 
receive a waiver.
 
3.       The student will not receive credit for the physical education waiver but rather, will have their elective physical 
education requirement decreased by 1/2 credit, thus enabling them to take additional courses in another area.
 
4.       The l/2 physical education elective credit may be waived by  participating in, and completing in good standing, district 
sponsored athletic activities .  Such activities must be completed during a time period not to exceed a school year and the 
preceding or following summer.  Other activities outside of the school district, verified by a certified teacher employed by the 
district, may meet the waiver requirement provided the activity meets the same time requirements as listed above.
 
5.       This waiver will be granted for activities which occur during a single school year or during the summer preceding and 
following an academic school year.

 

(cf. - 6146 Graduation Requirements and Standards of Proficiency)
(cf. - 6146.7 Diplomas)
 

Legal Reference:
ALASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
4 AAC 06.075  High school graduation requirements

                                                                                                                                  
 
 
 

 
KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

                                                                                                                               Adoption Date:  6/8/98
 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/e02472/Desktop/BD_PKT01_02/bd_pkt060302/bp6146.1.htm (4 of 4)10/20/2006 3:21:04 PM


	Local Disk
	KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
	On 5/15/02, the leadership team (directors, senior management) reviewed the Board Self-Assessment document
	Situation:
	KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
	KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
	September 11, 1998
	September 15, 1997
	August 7, 2000
	Substitute Contracts
	Resignations
	LOA-Certified
	LOA-Support
	August 7, 2000
	September 11, 1998
	May 24, 2002
	Situation:
	New Admin assign
	Business and Noninstructional Operations
	KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT


	Button10: 


